A. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER 

The State of Washington, Petitioner here and Respondent below, 

respectfully requests that this Court review the published decision of the 

Court of Appeals in State v. Martines, No. 69663-7-I (July 21, 2014), a 

copy of which is attached as Appendix A. 

B. ISSUE PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

A Washington State Patrol Trooper sought a search warrant to 

draw vials of Martines's blood for the express purpose of testing that 

blood for evidence ofthe crime of Driving Under the Influence. 

A magistrate approved the warrant, authorizing the seizure of a blood 

sample, because "there [wa]s probable cause to believe that ... evidence 

of the crime(s) of: Driving While under the Influence" would be found in 

the blood. After the warrant was executed and the blood sample obtained, 

the blood was tested for evidence ofthe crime of Driving Under the 

Influence. No case law or court rule has ever required a separate, express 

judicial authorization to test a blood sample lawfully obtained by search 

warrant. Did the trial court properly deny Martines's motion to suppress 

the results of the forensic analysis of his blood? 

- 1 -
1410-13 Martines SupCt 



C. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

On June 16, 2012, Martines was driving an SUV on Highway 167 

when he crashed into another car, hit the highway barrier, and rolled over. 

Several citizens, an off-duty officer who stopped to help, and the 

responding Washington State Patrol trooper all believed that Martines was 

intoxicated. Martines, slip op. at 1-2. 

In an affidavit for search warrant, the trooper provided the basis to 

find probable cause that Martines had committed the crime of Driving 

Under the Influence, a violation ofRCW 46.61.502. CP 95-99. He also 

explained that a sample of Martines's blood, "if extracted within a 

reasonable period of time after he/she last operated, or was in physical 

control of, a motor vehicle, may be tested to determine his/her current 

blood alcohol level and to detect the presence of any drugs that may have 

impaired his/her ability to drive." CP 97. The magistrate approved the 

warrant, finding that "there is probable cause to believe that ... evidence 

of the crime(s) of: Driving While under the Influence, RCW 46.61.502 is 

concealed in, about or upon the person of Martines," and commanding the 

extraction of a "sample of blood" from him. CP 100-01. 

The warrant was served on Martines, a blood sample was 

extracted, and the blood was later tested by the Washington State Patrol 

Toxicology Laboratory, which determined that Martines's blood alcohol 

- 2 -
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concentration was about .061 g/1 00 mL, and that his blood also contained 

.05 mg/L of diazepam (also known as Valium) and .03 mg/L of 

nordiazepam, both central nervous system depressants. 3RP 40-47. 

Pretrial, Martines moved to suppress any evidence of drugs in his 

blood, on the grounds that there was inadequate probable cause that he 

was under the influence of drugs to warrant testing his blood for anything 

other than alcohol. CP 7-12. The trial court denied the motion. 1 RP 

30-39, 52-55. Evidence of the alcohol and drug levels in Martines's blood 

was admitted at trial. 3RP 43-47. He was convicted as charged of one 

count of Felony Driving Under the Influence. CP 55. 

On appeal, Martines seemed to expand his suppression argument to 

include the claim that the analysis was a separate intrusion that required 

independent justification, but at oral argument, he argued that alcohol 

testing was permitted, specifically because the affidavit together with the 

warrant made clear that alcohol testing would occur. 1 Nonetheless, the 

Court of Appeals held that any testing of the blood sample required an 

express authorization in the warrant, and reversed Martines's conviction. 

State v. Martines, No. 69663-7-1 (July 21, 2014), attached as Appendix A. 

The State's Motion for Reconsideration was denied by order of October 8, 

1 Oral argument recording, 3:00-4:40 (http://www.courts.wa.gov/appellate_trial_courts/
appellateDockets/index.cfm?fa=appellateDockets.showOraiArgAudioList&courtld=aOl 
&docketDate=20 140415). 
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2014, attached as Appendix B. The State timely seeks review of this 

decision. 

D. REASONS REVIEW SHOULD BE ACCEPTED AND 
ARGUMENT 

:. __ J 

RAP 13.4(b) permits review by this Court where a decision by the 

Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Court of Appeals or 

the Supreme Court, raises a significant question of law under the 

Washington State or United States Constitutions, or deals with an issue of 

substantial public interest. These criteria are met here. The decision 

below mandates that search warrants to draw blood for the purpose of 

analysis expressly authorize both the taking and the testing of that blood. 

This novel rule conflicts with decisions from this Court and the Court of 

Appeals on a constitutional question. The holding will affect warrants 

obtained before the new rule was announced, and raises many questions as 

to how future search warrants and court orders must be drafted. 

1. THE WARRANT IN THIS CASE AUTHORIZED THE 
TAKING AND TESTING OF MARTINES'S BLOOD. 

Review is warranted because the decision below arises under both 

the federal and state constitutions. RAP 13.4(b)(3). 

- 4 -
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The Fourth Amendment of the United States Constitution prohibits 

unreasonable searches and seizures. State v. Williams, 102 Wn.2d 733, 

736,689 P.2d 1065 (1984). "A search occurs for Fourth Amendment 

purposes when 'an expectation of privacy that society is prepared to 

consider reasonable is infringed."' State v. Young, 123 Wn.2d 173, 189, 

867 P.2d 593 (1994) (citations omitted). Article I, section 7 ofthe 

Washington Constitution provides greater protection in some areas than 

does the federal constitution. State v. Surge, 160 Wn.2d 65, 70, 156 P.3d 

208 (2007). That provision prohibits government intrusion upon private 

affairs without authority oflaw. WASH. CaNST. art. I, § 7. Under 

Article 1, section 7, a search occurs when there is an intrusion into "those 

privacy interests which citizens of this state have held, and should be 

entitled to hold, safe from governmental trespass absent a warrant." 

State v. Rose, 128 Wn.2d 388, 400, 909 P.2d 280 (1996) (citations and 

internal quotation marks omitted). For the intrusion to constitute a search, 

it must be an unreasonable intrusion. State v. Boland, 115 Wn.2d 571, 

580, 800 P.2d 1112 (1990). 

It is undisputed that the taking of a blood sample constitutes a 

search and seizure for purposes of the Fourth Amendment and Article I, 

section 7. State v. Kalakosky, 121 Wn.2d 525, 534, 852 P.2d 1064 

(1993); State v. Judge, 100 Wn.2d 706, 711, 675 P.2d 219 (1984). 
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However, the trooper in this case obtained a search warrant authorizing the 

search ofMartines and the seizure ofhis blood. CP 94-103; Ex. 20; 

2RP 129-32. There is no dispute that the search warrant was supported by 

probable cause that Martines was driving under the influence of alcohol, 

and that evidence of that crime could be found in Martines's blood. 

CP 95-101; Ex. 20. Thus, the only question before the Court of Appeals 

was Martines's contention that the analysis of his blood, as distinct from 

the seizure of his blood, violated his constitutional rights. 

The affidavit in support of the warrant averred that a sample of 

Martines's "blood, if extracted within a reasonable period oftime after 

he/she last operated, or was in physical control of, a motor vehicle, may be 

tested to determine his/her current blood alcohol level and to detect the 

presence of any drugs that may have impaired his/her ability to drive." 

CP 97. The reviewing magistrate explicitly incorporated the affidavit by 

reference and authorized the warrant, finding that there was probable 

cause to believe that evidence of the crime of Driving Under the Influence 

was "concealed in, about or upon" Martines, and commanding the seizure 

of"a sample ofblood." CP 100-01. 

Given the trooper's articulated purpose for obtaining Martines's 

blood and the trial court's finding that his blood may contain "evidence of 

the crime" of Driving Under the Influence, the Court of Appeals should 
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have concluded that the analysis of Martines's blood was anticipated by 

the warrant, and was permitted. 

First, search warrants are to be "interpreted in a common sense, 

practical manner, rather than in a hypertechnical sense." State v. Perrone, 

119 Wn.2d 538, 549, 834 P.2d 611 (1992). A vial of blood has no 

evidentiary value unless or until a forensic analysis is performed upon the 

blood. Thus, a warrant authorizing the seizure of blood as evidence of a 

crime necessarily anticipates that the sample will be tested; judicial 

authorization to conduct the forensic testing outlined in the affidavit is 

effectively included in the granting of the search warrant. No more 

express judicial authorization is needed. Accordingly, reading the warrant 

to authorize seizure but not analysis defies common sense and is wholly 

impractical. Indeed, a magistrate's authorization for intruding under a 

suspect's skin and taking a blood sample for the mere purpose of 

collecting and storing his blood-an intrusion that would lack any 

evidentiary value-seems unconstitutional on its face. 

Second, even if the warrant cannot be construed to authorize the 

testing for which the blood was sought, Martines's rights were still not 

violated. An independent and neutral magistrate determined that there 

was probable cause to believe that Martines's driving was impaired by 

intoxicants. A law enforcement officer sought that warrant for the express 

- 7-
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purpose of analyzing Martines's blood for evidence of intoxicants. Once 

the warrant was served, the police had Martines's blood sample in their 

lawful custody. Testing that blood for the purpose identified in the 

warrant affidavit-to obtain evidence of a crime for which there was 

probable cause--does not intrude on any reasonable expectation of 

privacy, nor is such an intrusion itselfunreasonable. See Young, 123 

Wn.2d at 189; Boland, 115 Wn.2d at 580. Thus, no constitutional 

violation occurred when the state tested Martines's blood for evidence of 

the crime of Driving Under the Influence. 

Third, the Court of Appeals appeared to believe that the warrant 

would have been valid if the affidavit was physically attached to the 

wan·ant, and the warrant expressly referred to and incorporated the 

affidavit "with suitable words of reference." Slip op. at 13 n.2 (quoting 

State v. Riley, 121 Wn.2d 22, 29,846 P.2d 1365 (1993)). The warrant 

did, however, specifically incorporate the affidavit. CP 100 ("upon the 

sworn complaint heretofore made and filed ... and incorporated herein by 

this reference"), and the two documents were filed with the court as a 

single exhibit. Ex. 20. The record is otherwise silent as to whether the 

affidavit was in fact attached, because it was immaterial to Martines's 
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motion in the trial court which challenged only the drug results, not the 

alcohol results. CP 7-12.2 

In the absence of proof that the affidavit was attached to the 

warrant, the Court of Appeals assumed that it was not and refused to 

affirm the conviction. But when a record is incomplete, the appellate 

court is to presume any facts not inconsistent with the record that could 

sustain the trial court's ruling; it may not presume the existence of facts 

for the purpose of finding reversible error. State v. Njonge, No. 86072-6, 

slip op. at 9-10 (Wash. Sept. 25, 2014) (citing State v. Jasper, 174 Wn.2d 

96, 123-24, 271 P.3d 876 (2012). Thus, the Court of Appeals should have 

concluded that the affidavit was attached, so that the warrant plainly 

authorized testing of the blood. 

In short, this was a search warrant like hundreds of others, and the 

Court of Appeals had a number of bases upon which it could-and 

should-have affirmed the trial court's denial of Martines's suppression 

motion. It should have applied controlling Washington law regarding the 

interpretation of a search warrant, the breadth of constitutionally protected 

privacy interests, or the incorporation of an affidavit into a warrant to 

2 Martines's motion was entitled "Motion to Suppress Evidence of Drugs or Drug 
Testing" and it concluded with this sentence: "Here, the police and witnesses smell and 
see signs of alcohol activity only. There's never any mention of drugs, no signs of drugs, 
and no DRE investigation. The Court should suppress any evidence of drugs, because 
there was no probable cause to test for drugs, only alcohol." CP 12. 
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conclude that the analysis of Martines's blood was not an unconstitutional 

intrusion into his personal affairs. It especially should have done so in 

light of Martines's concession at oral argument that the analysis of his 

blood for alcohol content was proper. 

2. THE DECISION BELOW CONFLICTS WITH SEVERAL 
APPELLATE DECISIONS IN WASHINGTON. 

Instead of resolving this case in the fashion described above, 

the Court of Appeals reversed the trial court's denial of Martines's 

suppression motion by separating the act of seizing a sample of a person's 

blood from the act of examining the seized substance, holding that the 

latter is a search for which a warrant is required, and the failure to include 

language in the warrant referring to testing is a constitutional violation that 

must result in suppression of evidence. Slip op. at 11. This broad holding 

was not only unnecessary to the resolution of the case, it is inconsistent 

with Washington cases as well as cases from other jurisdictions, and 

creates great uncertainty for law enforcement regarding what types of 

forensic analysis require judicial authorization. See RAP 13 .4(b )(1 ), (2). 

First, the holding of the Court of Appeals in Martines conflicts 

with other decisions of the Court of Appeals and this Court. Division II 

permitted the forensic examination of a computer, seized pursuant to a 
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valid search warrant, outside of the ten-day period in which the warrant 

was to be executed. State v. Grenning, 142 Wn. App. 518, 174 P.3d 706 

(2008), affd, 169 Wn.2d 47 (2010). In doing so, that court observed that 

"it is generally understood that a lawful seizure of apparent evidence of a 

crime using a valid search warrant includes a right to test or examine the 

seized materials to ascertain their evidentiary value."3 Id. at 532 (citing 

2 Wayne R. LaFave, Search and Seizure§ 4.10(e), at 771 (4th ed. 2004)). 

Similarly, this Court has concluded that law enforcement may 

forensically examine evidence without further authorization because, once 

the evidence is lawfully in police custody, the suspect's expectation of 

privacy in that evidence is so reduced that no protectable interest remains 

under either the federal or state constitution. State v. Cheatam, 150 Wn.2d 

626, 634-44, 81 P.3d 830 (2003) (concluding that an arrested defendant 

lost any privacy interest in his shoes once they were lawfully in police 

custody); State v. Gregory, 158 Wn.2d 759, 820-29 & n.36, 147 P.3d 1201 

(2006) (relying on People v. King, 232 A.D.2d 111 (N.Y. App. Div. 

1997), for the conclusion that "[p ]rivacy concerns are no longer relevant 

once the sample has already lawfully been removed from the body, and 

3 Although the Court of Appeals took pains to distinguish a number of cases on which the 
State relied, Slip op. at 5-l 0, the Court did not mention Grenning at all. The State cited 
and discussed Grenning in its brief, see Brief of Respondent at 13-14, and the case 
directly addresses the claim raised by Martines. 
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the scientific analysis of a sample does not involve any further search and 

seizure of a defendant's person"). 

Moreover, this notion is embedded in this Court's own rules. 

Criminal Rule 4.7 provides that the trial court may require a defendant to 

submit to "the taking of samples of or from the defendant's blood, hair, 

and other materials of the defendant's body including materials under the 

defendant's fingernails which involve no unreasonable intrusion thereof." 

CrR 4.7(b)(2)(vi). The rule contains no express authorization for testing. 

Surely this Court did not intend for superior courts to routinely authorize 

seizures of blood simply to compile stocks ofblood vials in police 

evidence rooms. Instead, this Court must have intended that the seizure of 

blood or other biological samples includes subjecting that evidence to 

relevant forensic analysis, or the seizure was pointless. 

Other jurisdictions have reached similar results. See,~. State v. 

Price, 270 P.3d 527 (Utah 2012) (holding, on facts nearly identical to 

those presented in Martines, that a suspect has no reasonable expectation 

of privacy in the presence of contraband in his lawfully obtained blood); 

Harrison v. Commissioner ofPublic Safety, 781 N.W.2d 918 (Minn. Ct. 

App. 201 0) ("[W]hen the state has lawfully obtained a sample of a 

person's blood ... specifically for the purpose of determining alcohol 

concentration, the person has lost any legitimate expectation of privacy in 

- 12-
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the alcohol concentration derived from analysis of the sample."); Wright 

v. State, 579 S.E.2d 214, 222 (Ga. 2003) (determining that development of 

film in a camera need not be authorized by warrant, as it is "akin to a 

laboratory test on any lawfully seized object"); Patterson v. State, 744 

N.E.2d 945, 947 (Ind. Ct. App. 2001) (concluding that there is no 

reasonable expectation of privacy in a blood sample lawfully obtained by 

police); State v. Wallace, 910 P.2d 695 (Haw. 1996) (determining that the 

chemical testing of evidence already within police custody does not invade 

any legitimate expectation of privacy); State v. Petrone, 468 N.W.2d 676, 

681 (Wise. 1991) (holding that police may develop film seized during 

execution of a search warrant because a "search warrant does not limit 

officers to naked-eye inspections of objects lawfully seized"), overruled 

on other grounds by State v. Greve, 468 N.W.2d 676 (Wise. 1991); United 

States v. Snyder, 852 F.2d 471,474 (9th Cir. 1988) (concluding that, if a 

blood sample is lawfully obtained, "the subsequent performance of a 

blood-alcohol test has no independent significance for fourth amendment 

purposes"); State v. Moretti, 521 A.2d 1003, 1009 (R.I. 1987) ("No 

principle of constitutional law requires any law enforcement official to 

obtain a warrant prior to testing any item seized during a valid search."), 

abrogated on other grounds by Advisory Opinion to the Governor 

(Appointed Counsel), 666 A.2d 813 (1995); see also United States v. 

- 13-
141 0-13 Martines SupCt 

I' 



... : .. \ ' 

Edwards, 415 U.S. 800, 803-06,94 S. Ct. 1234,39 L. Ed. 2d 771 (1974) 

("Indeed, it is difficult to perceive what is unreasonable about the police's 

examining and holding as evidence those personal effects of the accused 

that they already have in their lawful custody as the result of a lawful 

arrest."); Schmerber v. California, 384 U.S. 757, 86 S. Ct. 1826, 16 L. Ed. 

2d 908 (1966) (treating extraction of blood for testing and the testing of 

the blood as a single event for Fourth Amendment purposes). 

Against this bulwark of authority, Martines offered not a single 

case that concluded that express judicial authorization was required to 

forensically analyze evidence lawfully in the possession of law 

enforcement. The Court of Appeals likewise cited no such authority. 

Instead, the Court accepted Martines's invitation to use the reasoning of 

Skinner v. Ry. Labor Execs.' Assn., 489 U.S. 602, 109 S. Ct. 1402, 103 L. 

Ed. 2d 639 (1989), and Robinson v. City ofSeattle, 102 Wn. App. 795, 

822 n.1 05, 10 P .3d 452 (2000), to conclude that the taking of a biological 

sample and the analysis of a biological sample are separate events for 

purposes of the Fourth Amendment and Article I, section 7. 

These cases do not support the court's holding. The administrative 

searches in these cases were analyzed under the "special needs" doctrine, 

meaning that the searches were not supported by probable cause or 

individualized suspicion, let alone authorized by a warrant. Further, 

- 14-
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although the cases make some distinction between the privacy interest in 

the taking of the sample and the privacy interest in the analysis ofthe 

sample, that distinction makes no difference to the outcome of the cases-

rendering it dicta. Skinner, 489 U.S. at 616; Robinson, 102 Wn. App. at 

822 n.l 05. Finally, while these cases recognize that different privacy 

interests may be at stake in the acquisition of evidence and in the analysis 

of it, neither holds that the testing alone is an unreasonable intrusion into 

an individual's privacy.4 

This is not to say that courts should turn a blind eye to a forensic 

examination that intrudes into sensitive areas unrelated to any possible 

crime under investigation. Courts have a role to play if the police, instead 

of looking for evidence of intoxication, had analyzed Martines's blood for 

"evidence of disease, pregnancy, and genetic family relationships or lack 

thereof." Slip op. at 11. But here, law enforcement did no such thing. Its 

analysis of Martines's blood looked solely and precisely at what the 

issuing magistrate plainly intended: evidence of impairment relevant to 

the crime of Driving Under the Influence. Where the Court of Appeals' 

concerns are hypothetical but not raised in the instant case, the court

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