RECEIVED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
Nov 17, 2014, 3:36 pm
BY RONALD R. CARPENTER
CLERK

RECEIVED BY E-MAIL

Supreme Court No. 90926-1 COA No. 69663-7-I

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

STATE OF WASHINGTON,

Petitioner,

٧.

JOSE MARTINES,

Respondent.

ON APPEAL FROM THE SUPERIOR COURT OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY

The Honorable Mariane C. Spearman

ANSWER TO STATE'S PETITION FOR REVIEW

OLIVER R. DAVIS Attorney for Respondent

WASHINGTON APPELLATE PROJECT 1511 Third Avenue, Suite 701 Seattle, Washington 98101 (206) 587-2711

A. ARGUMENT TO DENY REVIEW.

- (1). Settled constitutional principles under the Fourth Amendment and Article 1, § 7 determined the outcome in *Martines*.
- a. The Court of Appeals correctly decided the issues

 litigated by the parties. Mr. Martines was convicted of DUI at a

 trial in which the State contended that he drove while under the
 influence of drugs or a combination of drugs and alcohol, in
 reliance on the results of forensic testing of his blood. CP 45.

Mr. Martines argued on appeal that there was no probable cause that he was under the influence of a drug, and that in fact, the search warrant that was issued for the taking of his blood, by its plain language, completely failed to grant judicial authority for any forensic testing of the defendant's drawn blood at all. AOB, at pp. 5-13, Reply at pp. 3-8, Decision, at p. 3 (setting out appellant's arguments).

The State's responsive argument on appeal was singular¹: the State argued that, when seized by needle, <u>all</u> testing of a citizen's blood is permissible, without any warrant authority of law

¹ The State conceded in the Court of Appeals that the search warrant did not blood testing, and argued that no probable cause or warrant is required to test blood that is in law enforcement's possession. <u>See BOR</u>, at p. 1 ("although the warrant did not specifically authorize forensic examination of the blood . . . [n]o Washington case requires judicial authorization").

necessary, because the testing of a person's blood does not invade any reasonable expectation of privacy – nor, the State argued, does it intrude in the least upon anyone's private affairs. BOR, at pp. 1-18. Specifically, the State argued:

Martines contends that the results of the blood testing must be suppressed because the affidavit did not contain probable cause to believe that Martines' blood contained drugs in addition to alcohol, and because the search warrant did not authorize the testing of his blood at all. But no such specific probable cause or authorization was necessary.

BOR, at p. 10; see also BOR, at p. 8 (arguing that it would be an "empty formality" to insist on warrant authorization for alcohol testing, or drug testing, of drawn blood).

The Court of Appeals considered the parties' properly raised arguments and then determined, in <u>State v. Martines</u>, 331 P.3d 105, Wash.App. Div. 1, July 21, 2014 (NO. 69663-7-I) (Decision), that the following questions must be answered on appeal:

- 1. whether forensic testing of drawn blood is a search; and
- 2. whether searches require warrants.

Decision, at pp. 8-12. At issue was the question whether any, and if so what "limitations on the testing of drawn blood are required by the Fourth Amendment or article 1, section 7" of the Washington Constitution. Decision, at p. 8.

Regarding the first constitutional question, whether testing of drawn blood is a search of any private matter, the Court of Appeals concluded that settled doctrine required answering in the affirmative. The answer was based on the federal constitution's "reasonable expectation of privacy" test, and under the state constitution's criteria that asks whether an asserted privacy interest is one that citizens of this State are entitled to hold safe from governmental trespass. Decision, at p. 11; U.S. Const. amend. 4; Wash. Const. art. 1, § 7.

The second question of whether searches require warrants was also answered in the affirmative, similarly based on settled law. A search requires a particularized judicial warrant granting authority to search. Decision, at pp. 11-12. In this case, no warrant for blood testing had been issued. Decision, at pp. 12-13, and n. 2 ("The testing that occurred in the toxicology lab was a warrantless search").

A third question, that of warrant authority in terms of the language of the warrant, was a tertiary issue at most because the State *conceded* that the warrant did not grant any authority for forensic testing of the drawn blood. See note 1, supra; see also Decision, at pp. 2, 12 (noting that that warrant simply had no

language saying anything about blood testing at all). Although the question was not at issue, not even the "good faith" exception of United States v. Leon, 468 U.S. 897, 104 S.Ct. 3405, 82 L.Ed.2d 677 (1984), applying federal constitutional doctrine, could be used to legalize a search under this warrant, which was so facially deficient that no reasonable police officer could possibly presume it to grant authority for the forensic testing that was conducted. See 2 W. LaFave, Search and Seizure § 4.5, at 563 (4th ed. 2004).²

This was the Court of Appeals' decision on the two questions presented, which it reached by employing settled constitutional principles, necessarily rejecting the State's position that the forensic testing of drawn blood is not a "search." See BOR, at pp. 8, 18. The intrusion into private affairs that occurs

² Petitioner State of Washington raised an issue in its petition for review to this Court and its motion for reconsideration in the Court of Appeals that was not only new, but diametrically opposite from the arguments it made in the Court of Appeals briefing, and which is not before this Court. See PFR, at pp. 6-9, MFR, at pp. 23-25 (both arguing that the warrant affidavit could cure the inadequate warrant and authorize testing of the blood if it was physically attached to the warrant); see BOR (arguing that no probable cause, or search warrant, is needed to test blood); see Decision, at p. 13 n. 2 (noting that State had not argued cure theory). This claim of cure of the warrant's inadequacy depends on factual matters that the State was invited to, but did not attempt to establish, in the trial court, and the claim was therefore understandably no part of the Brief of Respondent. CP 7 (Defendant Martines' motion to suppress, at p. 5). Subsequently, the new legal argument was not properly placed before the Court of Appeals, having only been made in the State's motion to reconsider following the adverse decision in that Court. RAP 12.4(c).

when blood is tested for physiological data is a search.3

This must be correct, or the State would be entitled to test the arrestee Mr. Martines' blood -- not only for substances as to which there was no probable cause warrant authority anyway, such

³ Petitioner, addressing cases decided by the United States Supreme Court and cited by the Court of Appeals, attempts to cloak that question with confusion, where there is none. PFR, at pp. 14-15. The fact that the U.S. Supreme Court, when deeming forensic analysis of collected body fluids to be searches, employed the Fourth Amendment 'search' analysis within the larger context of special needs cases, is immaterial; the Fourth Amendment test is the same in either event. Thus in Ferguson, the Court held that the urine tests conducted by a state hospital were unquestionably searches under the Fourth Amendment. Ferguson v. City of Charleston, 532 U.S. 67, 76, 121 S.Ct. 1281, (2001) (citing Skinner v. Railway Labor Executives' Assn., 489 L.Ed.2d U.S. 602, 616, 109 S.Ct. 1402, 103 L.Ed.2d 639 (1989) (the post-blood-taking "chemical analysis of a sample to obtain physiological data" is a further search beyond just the taking of the blood, under the reasonable expectation of privacy test)). Also not distinguished by the Petitioner is Robinson v. City of Seattle, 102 Wn. App. 795, 812-13, 817-18, 10 P.3d 452 (2000), which held that a preemployment drug testing scheme implicated the Article 1, sec. 7 privacy protections of both personal autonomy and "confidentiality." The state blood cases cited by the Respondent from Utah, Minnesota, and Indiana - none of which, in further point, were analyzed under any state constitutional provision conflict with Robinson, because, among other reasons, they rely on the reasoning that a person has no right to privacy in blood if the thing being held private therein is illegal drugs. Under Robinson, that tail does not wag the dog in the State of Washington. In State v. Price, 270 P.3d 527, 530 (Utah 2012), the court allowed testing of blood for drugs based on mere suspicion of alcohol use, because it was said to be like a dog sniffing the odor of illegal drugs that is emanating into the air from Inside a car, as In Illinois v. Caballes, 543 U.S. 405, 408, 125 S.Ct. 834, 160 L.Ed.2d 576 (2005). Testing Mr. Martines' blood for drugs did not, it is safe to say, involve simply sniffing the air rising from the test tube. Harrison v. Commissioner of Public Safety, 781 N.W.2d 918, 921 (Minn. App. 2010), involved a taking and testing of blood under an implied-consent statute in 2010, and the case did not address either Skinner, supra, or Ferguson, supra, much less Missouri v. McNeely, ___ U.S. ___, 133 S.Ct. 1552, 185 L.Ed.2d 696 (2013), and suffers from the same salient critique by the Court of Appeals reasoning addressing United States v. Snyder, 852 F.2d 471, 474 (9th Cir. 1988) (see Decision, at pp. 9-10). And in Patterson v. State, 744 N.E.2d 945, 947 (Ind. App. 2001), the Court merely affirmed its own decision in Patterson v. State, 742 N.E.2d 4 (2000), which held that where Patterson's blood sample was lawfully taken by police pursuant to a search warrant, the State's subsequent use of Patterson's legally obtained DNA sample for comparison in a subsequent

as the drugs the State tested for when it had probable cause only for alcohol, but also for genetic inferiorities, for shameful disease, or indeed for its DNA -- to then compare to the CODIS database.⁴

See State v. Gregory, 158 Wn.2d 759, 827, 147 P.3d 1201 (2006).

Now, the Petitioner contends that the Court of Appeals was incorrect in concluding that the testing of drawn blood is a matter of basic privacy, requiring any authority of law. But if a citizen's text messages – i.e., the typing of ephemera such as "what's up dog?" – is part of one's private affairs and thus protected by the state constitution even when the message is freely cast out over the electronic airways, then the private physiological information hidden inside a person's own blood must surely be similarly protected against intrusion without authority of law. See State v. Hinton, 179 Wn.2d 862, 869, 319 P.3d 9 (2014) (wherein this Court looked to the "nature and extent of the information which may be obtained as

unrelated case was a search, but it was reasonable under the facts of the case.

⁴ The Petitioner suggests that the Court of Appeals overreacted by being concerned that the State's argument that drawn blood in law enforcement's possession may be tested for anything without a warrant would allow it to be tested for matters such as disease or genetic defect, and assures us that the State would never overreach in that manner by going beyond the magistrate's proper grant of authority. PFR, at pp. 7-8, 15-16. Considering that the State did exactly that in this very case — when it tested the blood for drugs, in the absence of either probable cause or any judicial grant of warrant authority — this is a truly remarkable statement. See also Decision, at p. 7 (distinguishing State v. Athan, 160 Wn.2d 354, 158 P.3d 27 (2007)).

a result of the government conduct" and whether the matter involves "intimate details about a person's activities and associations" in order to decide that text messages are part of our private affairs).

Police searches of our drawn blood for private physiological information must be authorized by (1) a grant of warrant authority, and (2) by a warrant that particularly circumscribes what is to be searched for.⁵

a common sense manner does not cure the warrant's inadequacy in this case, because it entirely fails to grant particular authority to test the blood where it could have done so "because the circumstances of the case easily allowed."

Even the most laxly-enforced standard of particularity demands that the warrant specify the desired object of the search when it is easy and practicable to do so. Petitioner argues that search warrants should be read in a common sense, rather than "hypertechnical" manner. PFR, at p. 7 (citing State v. Perrone, 119

⁵ Throughout its Petition, the State contends that the Court of Appeals announced a new rule that blood testing is a search of a private affair and that searches require warrant authority. <u>See, e.g.</u>, PFR, at pp. 10, 16-17. But the Court of Appeals made clear that the questions presented, and the answers, were unavoidable. Decision, at p. 7.

Wn.2d 538, 547, 834 P.2d 611 (1992)). But <u>Perrone</u> doesn't help the Petitioner.

First, just as much as it is appropriate to describe the warrant's deficiency as one of particularity (see AOB at pp. 6-10; Decision at pp. 11-12), the blood testing in this case violated the constitutional protections in the fundamental instance because it was a search conducted in the absence of any warrant authority whatsoever, as the Court of Appeals recognized. Decision, at p. 2 (noting that the warrant granted authority to draw blood, but "[t]he warrant did not say anything about testing of the blood sample.").

The Petitioner contends that a reasonable person reading the search warrant would sense that it envisioned not just a search by blood-drawing, but also blood testing. PFR, at pp. 6-7.

Yet Petitioner cites no case that stands for the proposition that a warrant granting authority to conduct one search, but plainly not granting authority to conduct a different intrusion, can be saved by reading it in a 'common sense' manner in order to ask what additional authority should have been obtained but was not – and then simply announcing that this latter authority therefore implicitly was granted. That is not a tenable argument, since as it upends the entire concept of requiring the applicant to seek, and obtain a

judicial grant of warrant authority in order to invade a reasonable expectation of privacy or intrude upon a private affair.

See Schmerber v. California, 384 U.S. 757, 770, 86 S.Ct. 1826, 1835 (1966) (search warrants must represent the deliberate determination of a grant of authority to conduct the particular search of the body in search of evidence of guilt). The Court of Appeals' decision made clear that the search warrant in the present case granted no authority to test the drawn blood whatever.

Decision, at p. 12 ("As written, the warrant did not authorize testing at all.").

The search that was conducted in this case was utterly beyond what was authorized in the warrant's language, and the blood testing in this case was not conducted as a result of a reasonably 'mistaken' reading of the warrant language. See Leon, supra. Rather, this warrant was facially deficient. The problem with a search warrant that lacks particularity is that the warrant grants overly broad authority to search — authority that is so expansive, general and unspecific that it leaves it to the unfettered discretion of the police officer as the final authority to determine whether a particular search or object of the search is 'within' that general authority.

But here, also, if particularity is framed as the issue, the warrant fails a particularity analysis — and the rule of "commonsense" reading, contrary to the State's arguments, only **magnifies** that failure. The purposes of the search warrant particularity requirement primarily include "the prevention of general searches, and prevention of the seizure of objects on the <u>mistaken</u> assumption that they fall within the issuing magistrate's authorization." <u>State v. Perrone</u>, at 546-47 (citing 2 W. LaFave, <u>Search and Seizure</u> § 4.6(a), at 234–36 (2d ed. 1987), and <u>Marron v. United States</u>, 275 U.S. 192, 48 S.Ct. 74, 72 L.Ed. 231 (1927)). <u>Perrone</u> addressed the particularity requirement, which provides that search warrants must be issued

upon probable cause, supported by oath or affirmation, and particularly describing the place to be searched, and the persons or things to be seized.

U.S. Const. amend. 4. There is no legal basis for the State's contention that it was "hypertechnical" of the Court of Appeals to decline to read the warrant as granting particular authority that may have been contemplated but was not granted by the magistrate.

PFR, at pp. 6-7. This is not what the common-sense-reading directive of Perrone means, and it is not something that the particularity requirement tolerates. This Court in Perrone turned to

a decision of the same Court of Appeals to explain these principles:

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